
Town of Waynesville, NC  
Board of Aldermen – Special Called Meeting     
Town Hall, 9 South Main Street, Waynesville, NC  28786                           
Date:  June 1, 2015 Time:  6:30 p.m.  
 

 
The agenda and all related documentation may be accessed electronically at www.waynesvillenc.gov.  

Click on “Government/Mayor & Board” to download materials for town board meetings. 
 

Consider the environment    Conserve resources    Print only when necessary 
 

The Town of Waynesville provides accessible facilities, programs and services for all people, in compliance with the Americans 
with Disabilities Act (ADA). Should you need assistance or accommodation for this meeting, please contact the Town Clerk at:  

 (828) 452-2491 
aowens@waynesvillenc.gov   

 

 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER - Mayor Gavin Brown 

 
1. Welcome 

 
2. Adoption of Minutes 

 
Motion:  To approve the minutes of the May 12, 2015 (regular meeting)  as presented 
[or as corrected]. 

 
 

B. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 3. Lease Option and Agreement between PrimeTower and Town of Waynesville  

(request of John Behnke, Site Acquisition Services on behalf of PrimeTower) 

   
   Item Removed from Agenda per Request of Applicant 
 
 
C. PRESENTATION 
  

4. Proposed Budget Message for FY 2015-2016 
 
 

D. ADJOURN 
 

http://www.waynesvillenc.gov/


               MINUTES OF THE TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE BOARD OF ALDERMEN 
REGULAR MEETING 

May 12, 2015 

 
 

THE WAYNESVILLE BOARD OF ALDERMEN held its regular meeting on Tuesday, May 12, 2015 at 
6:00 p.m. in the board room of Town Hall, 9 South Main Street, Waynesville, NC.  
 
A.  CALL TO ORDER 
 

Mayor Brown called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. with the following members present: 
Mayor Gavin Brown 
Alderman Gary Caldwell 
Alderman Julia Freeman 
Alderman J. Wells Greeley 
Alderman LeRoy Roberson 

 
 Manager Marcy Onieal was not present  
 
 The following staff members were present: 

Woodrow Griffin, Town Attorney 
Amie Owens, Town Clerk 
David Foster, Public Services Director 
Daryl Hannah, Streets and Sanitation Supervisor 
Bill Hollingsed, Chief, Waynesville Police Department 
Steve Noland, Facilities and Maintenance 
Damon Swanger, Maintenance Worker II 

 
 The following media representatives were present: 
  Mary Ann Enloe, the Mountaineer 
  Becky Johnson, Smoky Mountain News 

  
 1.  Welcome /Calendar/Announcements 
 
 Mayor Gavin Brown welcomed everyone to the meeting and noted the following calendar 
events and invitations: 
 

 May 14 – Law Enforcement Memorial - Sheriff’s Office - 10:30 a.m.  

 May 16 – Quick Draw – Laurel Ridge Country Club – 5:00 p.m. 

 May 16 – Casino Royale Event presented by Haywood Healthcare Foundation at the 
Maggie Valley Club – 6:00 p.m.  

 May 19 - Southwestern Commission regular meeting – 6:30 p.m.   

 May 28 – Detective Scott Muse Retirement Reception – 4:00 p.m. Town Hall 
Upstairs Lobby 
 

Mayor Brown noted that budget preparation is in full swing and asked members to try and be 
flexible in the event there are special called meetings.   



Waynesville Board of Alderman Minutes  Page 2 of 18 
Regular Meeting May 12, 2015  
 
 

Mayor Brown explained that Manager Onieal was not present due to the fact she had been in 
Raleigh meeting with a Senate Committee regarding the Waynesville/Lake Junaluska Referendum.  He 
added that the bill would now go to the Finance Committee which is scheduled to meet next week.  
Mayor Brown noted that he and/or Ms. Onieal may be in attendance for that meeting.  

 
2. Adoption of Minutes 
 
 Alderman Caldwell made a motion, seconded by Alderman Freeman, to approve the 
minutes of the April 14, 2015 regular meeting as presented.  The motion carried unanimously.  
 
3. Proclamations 
 
 Mayor Brown read aloud a proclamation recognizing the week of May 17 – 23 as Public 
Works Week.  David Foster, Public Services Director, explained that there were three individuals 
present representing the department and described their individual accomplishments.  Damon 
Swanger, attended a youth leadership conference in Washington, D.C.;  Steve Noland is a 
licensed plumber and allows the town to utilize his license; and Daryl Hannah, who recently 
completed the Municipal and County Administration Certification Course (MCACC) offered by 
the UNC School of Government.  
 
 Mr. Foster explained that Public Services are the unsung heroes of local government; 
they are the front line and front door service providers.  Mr. Foster gave an example of if 
garbage is not picked up when citizens have become accustomed, they are on the phone calling 
to see why.  Public Services encompasses multiple functions within the town and customer 
service is at the heart of their interactions with citizens and visitors.  
 
 Mayor Brown commended the individuals on their accomplishments and asked Mr. 
Hannah to tell about his experience in the MCACC.  Mr. Hannah explained that MCACC is a 7-
month undertaking to teach about various government functions such as employment law, 
planning/zoning, finance, elected officials responsibilities.  Receiving training in all of these areas 
allows for broader understanding of local government and how to work cross-departmentally.    
 

Mayor Brown concluded by noting that the Public Services staff is a shining example of 
the benefit to the community.   

 
Alderman Caldwell added that he appreciated the work on the armory and sidewalks to 

get ready for the ARC of Haywood County event in late April.  He noted that there were many 
good comments regarding the parking lot and the facility, mostly from out of town visitors.  

 
Mr. Foster took the opportunity to introduce the new Town Engineer – Preston Gregg 

and noted that he would begin work on May 28.        
 
 Fire Chief Joey Webb introduced Catherine Hughes, an intern who will be with the town 
during the summer.  Ms. Hughes is pursuing her Masters Degree in Public Administration from 
UNC-Chapel Hill with a concentration in Emergency Management. Her primary task while here 
will be to develop emergency action plans for all departments, and assisting with CAPRA risk 
management for Recreation. Chief Webb noted that she will also be developing NIMS 
compliance plans and assisting with other administrative functions with the Fire Department.     



Waynesville Board of Alderman Minutes  Page 3 of 18 
Regular Meeting May 12, 2015  
 
 

B. PRESENTATIONS 
 
 4. Historic Frog Level Merchants Association Update 
 
 Tom Sheppard, board member of the Historic Frog Level Merchant’s Association (FLMA) 
provided a letter to the Board of Aldermen regarding the current state of Frog Level and some concerns 
about the area.   Mr. Sheppard posed two questions to the board – are you happy with Frog Level as it is 
today and what is your vision of the future of Frog Level?   
 
 Mr. Sheppard noted that the Whole Bloomin’ Thing festival was very successful due in part to 
the addition of a festival director, Joy Simmons.   The FLMA is working to gain a social media presence 
with the addition of a website to promote Frog Level.  The goal is to gain additional festivals and events 
in Frog Level and encourage continued growth.  Mr. Sheppard added that other ideas include the 
addition of banners, planters, benches and garbage receptacles to provide a more inviting view of Frog 
Level, as well as a train themed museum dedicated to Frog Level.   
 
 Mr. Sheppard explained that the FLMA had some concerns and would require some assistance 
from the Town in addressing them.  The first is assistance with promotion including additional signage 
announcing Frog Level; however, there are some limitations due to the current sign ordinance.   Another 
concern is the unused buildings in Frog Level with dilapidated facades.  The request is to have the town 
intervene to have owners improve the building’s appearance.   
 
 Mr. Sheppard commented that the biggest concern is the homeless and the Open Door. He 
clarified that the majority of the patrons to the Open Door came and received their meals and left; 
however, several examples were provided of situations where individuals have acted inappropriately.  
The request was for the Town to pass an ordinance requiring the Open Door to pass enforceable 
internal policies to prevent future issues.    Mr. Sheppard added that in the long term, a food bank in a 
shopping area will not work and that zoning should be reviewed and such services not allowed in a 
commercial district.  He outlined a future vision to have Frog Level become a destination much like Main 
Street where people congregate to relax and enjoy sitting creekside with friends.    
 
 Mr. Sheppard concluded by asking the board, would you help us work on our vision?  He noted 
that the FLMA was willing to work with the Town to see improvements made and would like to be 
informed of any meetings regarding Frog Level.    
 

Mayor Brown thanked Mr. Sheppard for his comments and added that the issues presented 
could not be decided upon at this meeting.  The issues presented cross all aspects of town operations 
and are not simple to address.  He noted that an ordinance could not be passed to single out one 
business or organization.  The Mayor commented, “It’s wrong and would bring on discrimination 
lawsuits that we are not going to be a part of.”  Mayor Brown added that there could not be discussion 
unless the Open Door is part of the dialogue.   He acknowledged that issues would not be solved 
overnight and asked if property owners or merchants would consider special tax such as that paid on 
Main Street.  He requested that each of the board members weigh in on the issues presented.  

   
Alderman Caldwell explained that as someone who works in that area, he agreed that 

something needs to be done and that it made sense to look at amending the sign ordinance for banners 
for beautification.  He added that he was on the FLMA’s side and expressed that if anyone needed to 
talk about these issues, he was their contact.     



Waynesville Board of Alderman Minutes  Page 4 of 18 
Regular Meeting May 12, 2015  
 
 

Alderman Greeley explained that he considered Waynesville to have a borough system; each 
area is unique but can co-exist together with a similar look, but with different draws and patrons.  He is 
an advocate for growth and improvements in all areas.  

  
Alderman Roberson echoed that singling out one business or organization is not feasible.  The 

town cannot dictate for improvements to private land and expecting them to move or change their 
internal policies is not something that the Town would do. 

  
Mayor Brown added that it may be possible to establish a task force to work together, FLMA, 

Town and Open Door, but he cautioned that nothing would be resolved overnight.  He reiterated that 
there are multiple considerations involved in the concerns and the requests.    

 
Alderman Freeman commented that the Open Door works with primarily Haywood County 

residents with only a small population of transients.  As far as the issues with disobedience, she agreed 
that they needed to be addressed, but added that it is the job of this board to look at taking care of all of 
the citizens and there are hungry people in Waynesville.    
  

Mayor Brown concluded the discussion by noting that an initial step may be to discuss the sign 
ordinance with the Development Services department.  He thanked Mr. Sheppard for his time and 
presentation and assured him that this is not an issue that is being ignored.  Mayor Brown added that 
the Town will continue to work together with all parties to find an amicable solution, if possible.    

 
A copy of the letter read and provided to the board members by Mr. Sheppard and the Historic 

Frog Level Merchant’s Association is herein incorporated into these minutes.  
 

 
C. PUBLIC HEARING 
 

5. Continuation of Public Hearing, opened on March 24, to consider adoption of an 
ordinance regulating the use of tobacco and related products in the Town of Waynesville 
 
 Town Attorney Woody Griffin opened the public hearing at 7:08 p.m. noting that this was a 
continuation of the public hearing from previous meetings.  He asked if anyone wished to address the 
board.   
 

Megan Hauser, 152 Walnut Street #7, Waynesville provided statistics from a community health 
survey to support putting this ordinance in place including the Haywood County ranking of 56th for 
health outcomes in North Carolina.  She opined that an ordinance would help residents and visitors – 
from data obtained indicates 74% of individuals in Haywood County do not smoke, with 80% non-
smoking in NC.  Ms. Hauser explained, from   CDC – 2013 data, 82.2% of adults do not smoke and 
ordinances such as this support people in who are interested in quitting.  She noted that between 
January and March 2015, the NC Quit Line had received 40 calls from Haywood County residents.   Ms. 
Hauser called attention to the Waynesville logo tagline of Progress with Vision; she explained that this 
ordinance not only supports those who want to quit but protects overall all health of citizens, children 
and visitors. 

  
Attorney Griffin closed the public hearing at 7:11 p.m.   

 



Waynesville Board of Alderman Minutes  Page 5 of 18 
Regular Meeting May 12, 2015  
 
 

Mayor Brown asked the board for any comments.  
 
Alderman Roberson noted that this ordinance may help Frog Level in their quest for 

improvements since smoking will not be allowed on public sidewalks and may encourage individuals to 
move to another area.  He added that health concerns exist with smoking including lung cancer and 
macular degeneration, a problem that he frequently saw in his practice.    

Alderman Greeley added that he supported the ordinance as written.  He added that 
enforcement was a concern, but there will be time to begin the education process before the ordinance 
is in place.  
 

Alderman Caldwell agreed with his support.  
 
Alderman Freeman noted that her initial concern was to not infringe upon the rights of smokers, 

but the way that the ordinance has been written illustrates that the effort has been put forth to prevent 
this as much as possible.  

 
Mayor Brown noted there was a Resolution of Adoption required for the Ordinance.   
 
A copy of the Resolution and the Ordinance are herein incorporated into these minutes.   
 
Alderman Roberson made a motion, seconded by Alderman Greeley to adopt an ordinance 

regulating the use of tobacco and related products in the Town of Waynesville which will be effective 
six (6) months from this date to allow for public education and proper signage.  The motion carried 
unanimously.  
 
 
D. NEW BUSINESS 
 
6. Sarge’s Animal Rescue Foundation – street closure request 
 
 Mayor Brown noted that a request had been received from Sarge’s Animal Rescue Foundation 
to hold the 10th Annual Downtown Dog Walk on Saturday, August 1, 2015 beginning at 9:00 a.m. until 
11:00 a.m. with the walk going through downtown and ending on the Historic Courthouse lawn.   This 
event has been a long-standing success.   Mayor Brown asked if there were any questions or comments 
from the board.  There were none. 
 
 Alderman Freeman made a motion, seconded by Alderman Caldwell to approve the street 
closure for the 10th Annual Downtown Dog Walk on Saturday, August 1, 2015 from 9:00 a.m. until 
11:00 a.m., as presented.  The motion carried unanimously.   
 
 
7. Memorandum of Understanding – New Generation Leaders for county-wide Greenway Branding 

  
 Martha Bradley, attorney from the Cannon Law Firm, representing New Generation Leaders, 
noted that the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) referenced at the April 14 meeting had been 
developed and submitted to municipalities for review.   Ms. Bradley has spoken with Manager Onieal 
regarding the document and noted that she was agreeable, if the board recommended signing.  She 
added that the Town of Maggie Valley had unanimously approved execution of the MOU last week.     



Waynesville Board of Alderman Minutes  Page 6 of 18 
Regular Meeting May 12, 2015  
 
 

   
 Mayor Brown thanked Ms. Bradley and the New Generation Leaders in the audience for their 
prompt follow up and added that he looked forward to seeing their continued progress.    
 
 Alderman Greeley made a motion, seconded by Alderman Roberson to authorize the Mayor 
and/or Town Manager to execute the Memorandum of Understanding between the Town of 
Waynesville and the New Generation Leaders for the county-wide greenway branding and way-
finding signage, as presented.  The motion carried unanimously.   
 
 
F. COMMUNICATIONS FROM STAFF 
  
 9.  Town Attorney 
 
  Town Attorney Griffin had no business to discuss.  
 
  
G. COMMUNICATIONS FROM MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN 
  
 
H. CALL ON THE AUDIENCE 
 
  Jack Wadham requested to address the board.  He offered a solution to take the FLMA proposal 
of internal process controls one step further and include breathalyzers for those individuals suspected of 
consuming alcohol.   Mr. Wadham agreed that it was not the majority of the patrons who would be 
impacted, but those who consistently broke the rules and caused problems.  He added that this solution 
could cut down on the number of police and emergency calls and prevent some of the other issues 
noted earlier such as litter.    Mr. Wadham presented a petition from local shop owners who would like 
to see something done to incentivize the Open Door to stop serving those who are not abiding by the 
rules.   His suggestion was for the town to consider withholding of funding for electricity if service to 
intoxicated individuals continued.   Another suggestion was for the Open Door to have restroom 
facilities open in the afternoon prior to meals so that individuals could use them rather than the alley 
ways or on buildings. 
 
 Another individual Robin Rupe noted that she did laundry at the Open Door and that when the 
Executive Director, Perry Hines, was not present, when most of the issues occur.  She added that there 
was limited security and she was afraid that someone would get hurt.   
 

Mayor Brown again noted that the Open Door was not present to provide feedback regarding 
these issues and that they must be included in the discussion; the town would not unilaterally make 
decisions without all parties being involved.  Mayor Brown reiterated that an acceptable solution was in 
everyone’s best interest and that the board would work with all parties to try and come to resolution.   

 
Board member agreed by consensus that continuing with potential task force meeting involving 

all parties was the best course of action.   
 
 
 



Waynesville Board of Alderman Minutes  Page 7 of 18 
Regular Meeting May 12, 2015  
 
 

I. ADJOURN 
 
 There being no further business to discuss, Alderman Caldwell made a motion, seconded by 
Alderman Greeley, to adjourn the meeting at 7:34 p.m.  The motion carried unanimously.  
 
 
 
ATTEST        
 
 
              
       Gavin A. Brown, Mayor     
  
   
 
 
 
              
       Marcia D. Onieal, Town Manager 
 
 
 
 
       
Amanda W. Owens, Town Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Waynesville Board of Alderman Minutes  Page 8 of 18 
Regular Meeting May 12, 2015  
 
 

 
 
 



Waynesville Board of Alderman Minutes  Page 9 of 18 
Regular Meeting May 12, 2015  
 
 

 
 
 



Waynesville Board of Alderman Minutes  Page 10 of 18 
Regular Meeting May 12, 2015  
 
 

 
 
 



Waynesville Board of Alderman Minutes  Page 11 of 18 
Regular Meeting May 12, 2015  
 
 

 
 
 



Waynesville Board of Alderman Minutes  Page 12 of 18 
Regular Meeting May 12, 2015  
 
 

 
 
 



Waynesville Board of Alderman Minutes  Page 13 of 18 
Regular Meeting May 12, 2015  
 
 

 
 
 



Waynesville Board of Alderman Minutes  Page 14 of 18 
Regular Meeting May 12, 2015  
 
 

 
 
 



Waynesville Board of Alderman Minutes  Page 15 of 18 
Regular Meeting May 12, 2015  
 
 

 
 
 



Waynesville Board of Alderman Minutes  Page 16 of 18 
Regular Meeting May 12, 2015  
 
 

 
 
 



Waynesville Board of Alderman Minutes  Page 17 of 18 
Regular Meeting May 12, 2015  
 
 

 
 
 



Waynesville Board of Alderman Minutes  Page 18 of 18 
Regular Meeting May 12, 2015  
 
 

 


